UNITED
NATIONS C R C

\‘:\\ﬁ/ Convention on the D ERAL
72  Rights of the Child CRC/ O SR 467

19 Cctober 1998

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Ei ght eent h session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 467t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Friday, 29 May 1998, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson: M ss MASON

CONTENTS
STATEMENT BY THE H GH COWM SSI ONER FOR HUMAN RI GHTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (conti nued)

Initial report of Maldives (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 98-16373 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR. 467
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.05 a.m

STATEMENT BY THE H GH COWM SSI ONER FOR HUMAN RI GHTS

1. Ms. ROBINSON (Hi gh Comm ssioner for Human Ri ghts) said that children
were one of the highest priorities of her mandate and that the Five-Year

I mpl enent ati on Revi ew of the Vienna Decl aration and Progranme of Action
presented an opportunity to assess progress made in the field of children's
rights.

2. The Convention on the Rights of the Child had been ratified by virtually
all countries, as recomended by the Wrld Conference on Human Rights. In
confirmng the indivisibility of fundanental civil, political, economc,

social and cultural rights, the Convention laid the framework for a
system w de integrated approach to human rights.

3. As recogni zed by the World Conference on Human Ri ghts, there was a need
for increased cooperation anmong United Nations bodies active in the field of
human rights and for a regular review of the situation of children in
accordance with their respective nmandates. Wile there was room for inproved
i nteracti on between the treaty bodies on the one hand, and the rapporteurs and
experts of the Conm ssion on Human Rights on the other, there was a noticeable
trend to better integrate children's rights into the special procedures. At
its previous session, the Comm ssion had devoted special attention to the
guestion of integrating gender issues into its work. At its next session it

m ght focus on children's rights; if so, the Comrittee's input would be nost
wel come.

4, She hoped that the rights of the child and the Conmittee's own
recommendati ons would be a guiding reference in the efforts to establish an
International Crimnal Court and approve its statute at the Diplomatic
Conference to be held in Ronme in June 1998.

5. The Committee's interaction with a nunber of partners, including UNI CEF
and the NGO Group for the Rights of the Child, had becone a nodel for other
mechani sms.  That partnership had contributed to spreading a child-rights
culture. In that regard, she stressed a few devel opnments of particul ar
interest to the Commttee. Firstly, it had been proposed to prepare, at the
forthcom ng Annual Conference of the International Labour Organization (ILO),
a new Convention on the nost extreme forms of child |abour, which, when
adopted, was expected to reinforce existing international standards on the
rights of the child. Secondly, it had been decided to convene, in 2001, a
foll ow-up conference to the World Summit for Children. The Ofice of the

H gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights was considering its own input in that
process, including in the area of training, education, and nationa
capacity-building. Thirdly, her Ofice and UNAIDS had jointly published

I nternational Guidelines on H V/AIDS and Human Ri ghts, which woul d no doubt be
useful for the Conmittee's forthcom ng day of general discussion on Children
living in a world with H V/ Al DS

6. On the subject of children in arned conflict, she shared the view of the
Conmittee and of a majority of Governnments and inportant partners (including
UNI CEF, UNHCR, | CRC, many NGOs and the Special Representative of the



CRC/ C/ SR. 467
page 3

Secretary-Ceneral on children in arnmed conflict, M. Qtunnu), that a clear
l[imt of 18 years should be set for all forms of child participation in
hostilities, either direct or indirect. National I|egislation should not be
regarded as an obstacle to the el aboration of such new international norns.
She was convinced that the Committee's input to the foll owing session of the
Wor ki ng Group woul d contribute to the desired result.

7. She was particularly concerned by child trafficking and exploitation

All efforts to curb that phenonenon, including followup activities to the

St ockhol m Congress on Commerci al Sexual Exploitation of Children were to be
encouraged. The Working Group of the Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts had not yet
conpleted its work. In any event, full inplenmentation of existing

i nternational norms, especially the Convention on the R ghts of the Child, had
to remain a priority.

8. She was convinced that the continued support provided to the Commttee
through the Plan of Action to strengthen the inplenentation of the Convention
was highly useful in dealing with its heavy workload. 1t was her hope that
the survey on technical cooperation initiated under the Plan coul d becone,
through regul ar contributions by the Conmttee's main partners, especially
UNI CEF, 1LO | PEC, UNHCR, WHO, UNAIDS, the NGO community and her own Ofice, a
conduit for the identification of needs for technical cooperation at the
country level, and could facilitate such cooperation and foster increased
coordi nati on and compl ementarity anong the vari ous partners.

9. Despite the support provided through the Plan of Action, the Conmittee
still faced difficulties in performng its tasks; the fact that the Commttee
met for 12 weeks each year, with a limted nmenbership of 10, had sonetines |ed
to difficulties, and required a special effort on the part of each nmenber to
ensure its adequate functioning. She would spare no effort to facilitate a
rapid entry into force of the amendment increasing the Committee' s nenbership
to 18. To date, 60 States (half of the required nunber) had officially
accepted that amendment.

10. The CHAI RPERSON invited Committee nmenbers to ask questions or nake
coment s.

11. M. FULCI observed that the Commttee's proposal to include action to
conmbat violations of the rights of the child in the mandate of the new
International Crimnal Court had net with fierce resistance. He felt that the
Hi gh Comm ssioner's support in that regard could be extrenely useful and urged
her to speak out on behalf of the rights of children the world over in her
statement to the Diplomatic Conference in Rone.

12. Ms. SARDENBERG returning to the question of the integration of the
rights of the child, pointed out that the Conmittee had al ready succeeded in
changing attitudes to children throughout the world. All the sane, it was
equal ly essential to ensure that the rights of the child were integrated into
United Nations activities. The followup conference to the World Summit for
Chil dren shoul d enable the Commttee to assess the progress made by the
countries under their plans of action, so that it could be taken into account
when those countries' inplenmentation of the Convention on the R ghts of the
Child was under consideration




CRC/ T/ SR. 467
page 4

13. M. KOOSOV, referring to the amendnment to increase the Committee's
menbership to 18, asked for an updated list of the States that had accepted it
to be distributed to nmenbers.

14. Ms. ROBINSON (Hi gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights) agreed to raise the
question of children's rights in her statement to the Di pl omati c Conference in
Rome. Wth regard to the integration of those rights, she pointed out that
she had established an internal working group, one of whose tasks was to

consi der ways of further integrating the rights of the child into

United Nations activities. She saw no reason why a list of countries that had
accepted the anmendnent should not be made avail able to nmenmbers, and added t hat
in such a year of assessment, in which there was greater concern for universa
adherence to international instrunments, nmore States should be encouraged to do
so.

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORT OF STATES PARTIES (item 4 of the agenda) (continued)

Initial report of Maldives (continued) [(CRC/C/8/Add. 33 and Add. 37;
CRC/C/ Q@ MAL/ 1) (List of issues to be taken up in connection with the
consi deration of the initial report of Ml dives; witten replies by the
CGovernment of Maldives to the questions raised in the list of issues,
unref erenced docunent distributed at the neeting)]

15. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the menbers of the del egation of
Mal di ves resuned their places at the Committee table.

Civil rights and freedons [questions 20 to 25 of the list of issues
(CRC/C Q@ MAL/1)] (continued)

16. Ms. SHI HAM (Mal di ves) said that a nunber of awareness-raising programres
had been | aunched in the archipelago to help parents desist frominflicting
corporal punishment on their children. The authorities had published a
brochure and organi zed several radio broadcasts to teach parents to contro
their anger and frustration. Counselling services and a tel ephone hel pline
were al so avail able for parents experiencing difficulties in caring for their
chi | dren.

17. Ms. YOOSUF (Mal dives) said that there was no provision in Mldivian | aw
that contradicted the Shari a.

Fam |y environnment and alternative care (questions 26 to 31 of the list of
i ssues)

18. Ms. PALME wi shed to know how the parents of a child born out of wedl ock
were treated under Maldivian law. Did the nother receive any support during
her pregnancy? Wre the parents sanctioned in any way?

19. M. RABAH noted that, according to the report, nmore and nore children

found thenmsel ves in precarious circunstances owing to the high divorce rate.
He asked what neasures the Mal divian authorities planned to take in order to
bring that rate down. Mention was also made in the report of an increase in



CRC/ C/ SR. 467
page 5

the nunber of cases of abuse in Maldives. He would |ike to have further
i nformati on concerning current or planned programes to conbat that
phenonenon.

20. Ms. OUEDRAGO wi shed to know whet her the Maldivian authorities had
studi ed the inpact of frequent divorce and remarriage on children's
psychol ogi cal and noral health. The report stated that in the event of

di vorce, children were taken into the care of a nmenber of the extended famly.
She asked whet her that did not have consequences not nentioned in the report,
and wi shed to know what neasures the Governnent had taken to re-establish
parental responsibility and gui dance, which in npst cases were jeopardi zed by
“mul tiple” marriages. Were there any parental guidance courses and famly
counsel I ing services?

21. Wth regard to the situation of children separated fromtheir parents,
she noted that there was a residential institution exclusively for boys. Wat
happened to girls? Wre they obliged to remain in the extended famly

what ever the circunstances? Referring to paragraph 32 of the report
(CRC/ C/ 8/ Add. 33), which stated, in substance, that when a divorced nother was
to remarry and have other children, custody of the children of the first

marri age was offered to a rel ative, she asked whether that was the sole

sol uti on or whether a divorced woman could, fromthe viewpoint of Islamc
tradition and | aws, keep the children of the first marriage. Was the child's
opi nion taken into account?

22. VWhat neasures existed for recovering child support in the event of
di vorce? WAas there any nechanismto ensure that the father fulfilled his
obl i gation?

23. She understood that marriage between bl ood rel ations existed in
Mal di ves. Were they voluntary or were they negoti ated between the two
famlies? How were they cel ebrated, according to Islam c |aw or according to
the legislation in force?

24, According to paragraph 59 of the report, there was no “formalized”
system of adoption in Maldives. How were a child' s interests protected when
adopti on was authorized by the Mnistry of Justice and Islamc Affairs? Did
the child have any say in the matter?

25. Lastly, she asked whet her the nenbers of the del egati on saw any
connection between early marriages, multiple divorces, brutality, violence and
child abuse on the one hand, and rising juvenile delinquency on the other

26. Ms. SHI HAM (Mal di ves) said that a child born out of wedl ock was treated
like any other child with regard to education and health services. However,
he could not inherit fromhis father unless the latter recognized his
paternity. |In the case of offending parents, the nmother was placed under
house arrest for a year and the father was exiled to another island, also for
a year.

27. The high incidence of divorce was certainly one of the nobst acute
probl ems confronting the Maldivian authorities. In 1995, representatives from
all the islands had net at a nationw de conference to adopt a set of neasures



CRC/ C/ SR. 467
page 6

to conmbat the problem They included, in particular, a progranme designed to
alert the population to the disastrous consequences of divorce for children
and the adoption of legislation in the field of famly law. The Ml divian
authorities had repeatedly attenpted to conduct a survey on the inpact of
frequent divorce and remarriage on children, but the project had had to be
abandoned owing to the inordinate nunber of factors at stake. However, she
agreed that such a study should be undertaken as a matter of priority.

28. In cases of separation it was the nother who normally took care of the
children and there was nothing to prevent her fromremarryi ng and keeping the
children of a previous marriage. It was true that custody of a child to a

menber of an extended fam |y posed certain problenms, but it was also a socia
phenonenon that ensured that the children were protected. What the extended
famly did generally was to help the nother take better care of her children.

29. The Ml di vian authorities provided parental gui dance courses and famly
counselling. When it cane to restoring parental responsibility, it was
unusual for any nmenber of the family to be unwilling to accept custody.

30. The increase in abuse cases did not necessarily nean that the actua
nunbers were rising, but rather that Ml divians were nore aware that such
probl ems existed and | ess reluctant to report them Staff nenbers of the Unit
for the Rights of the Child of the Mnistry of Home Affairs gave tal ks on
ill-treatnment and sexual abuse at educational establishnments of all kinds.
Their brochures and programes were al so extensively distributed.

31. Under the poster canpai gns and numerous programmes, fathers were
encouraged to support their children. A project designed to create a hone for
girls with fam |y problens was being prepared and funds had been sought to
implenent it. \Wen the problens girls had with their parents could not be

sol ved, they were entrusted, with their consent, to a relative for alimted
period. Divorced wonen who remarried normally kept their children from
previous marriages. Fromthe age of seven, the child had the right to choose
i n whose custody he would remain. |In the case of divorce, the courts
guar ant eed paynment of a nmintenance allowance. The problemlay not only with
fathers who refused to pay the all owance, but also with nothers who did not

wi sh to accept it. For sonme years now the Unit for the Rights of the Child
had been trying to persuade those wonen to accept the mai ntenance all owance in
the child s interests. Consideration was being given to granting visiting
rights to parents who lived apart fromtheir children

32. Al marriages were entered into with free consent and were regi stered
with the court. There being no formalized system of adoption in Mldives, if
an orphan could not be placed in the custody of a relative or a friend of his
parents, the Governnent provided financial assistance to the famly that
agreed to look after him Furthernore, there were plans to conduct studies on
the possible links between nultiple remarriages and di vorces on the one hand,
and child violence and juvenile delinquency on the other. O the cases of
abuse reported to the Unit for the Rights of the Child, 56 per cent were
attributable to divorcee househol ds.

33. Ms. KARP asked what the social and cultural reasons were for the high
i nci dence of divorce, which was all the nore surprising since Ml dives was an



CRC/ C/ SR. 467
page 7

Islami c country. She queried the conpatibility of article 23 of Act No. 9/91
on the protection of the rights of the child with the provisions of articles 5
and 18 of the Convention, which deal with parental responsibilities. She

wi shed to know nore about the awareness canpai gns concerni ng sexual violence
agai nst children. What neasures were taken to assist girls who were victins
of sexual abuse?

34. How many fam |y counsellors and specialists were involved in the
rehabilitation of abused children? Wre there any hones for battered w ves?
Coul d the courts issue a restraining order on husbands who beat their w ves?
Had there been any deaths fromviolence in the fam|ly?

35. Ms. SARDENBERG asked for clarification of the official notification
limting the nunber of remarriages for the same couple. In that connection
she underscored the need to draft a law on the fam |y and for education and
awar eness canpai gns to be organi zed. Had specific neasures been taken to
prepare such a | aw? She encouraged the State party to expand its
interpretation of the provisions contained in articles 3 and 12 of the
Convention. She w shed to know what neasures were being taken to address the
probl ems of children who spent their time in the streets and formed thensel ves
into gangs. In that connection, she invited the State party to seek

i nternati onal cooperation, particularly from NGOs.

36. M. FULCI asked whether the existence of nmultiple marriages and a

“pol ynucl ear” type of extended fam |y did not have undesirable consequences
for children and their behaviour. He considered that in the absence of a
formali zed system of adoption, the State party should take steps to facilitate
per manent adoption of children either in Ml dives or el sewhere. Had the

CGover nment consi dered adhering to the Convention on the Protection of Children
and Cooperation in respect of Inter-County Adoption?

37. The CHAI RPERSON, speaking in her personal capacity, was of the viewthat
the report of Ml dives (CRC/ C/ 8/ Add. 33) provided insufficient details on the
exercise of children's rights regarding, for instance, recovery of nmaintenance
for the child, children deprived of a famly environnment, and illicit transfer
and non-return. She called, in particular, for details concerning the rea
condition of girls.

38. Ms. YOOSUE (Mal dives) replied that girls were nore protected than boys
and enjoyed | ess freedom For exanple, they could not |eave their atolls to
study on other islands. At the time when the residential institution for boys
was established, it was only boys who cane and went freely in the streets.
However, cases of girls doing so having been reported, a project for a simlar
girls' institution had been prepared.

39. Ms. SHI HAM (Mal di ves) expl ained that there was a ban on sexual relations
outside marriage, which explained the | arge nunber of marriages, followed by
di vorces, when married couples realized that they were not happy together

The spouses and their respective fanmlies did not bear each other any grudge.
It was possible that Law 9/91 disregarded the rights of parents with regard to
parental responsibility, but if the Governnent intervened, it did so in the
child' s own interests, when parents were not in a position to neet the child's
heal th and educati on needs.



CRC/ C/ SR. 467
page 8

40. Awar eness canpai gns on sexual viol ence against children had had positive
results because they had been geared to parents fromthe outset. Parents were
averse to reporting cases of sexual violence to the authorities because of the
potential social consequences for the victinms. The Government had taken pains
to see that professions that maintained contact with children were

fam liarized with the provisions of the Convention and Law 9/91. Trai ning
courses had been organi zed with the cooperation of foreign universities for
prosecutors, judges, education advisers and | aw enforcenent officials. Her
CGovernment was doing all it could to obtain help fromthe Centre for Human

Ri ghts and from a nunber of organizations in that field. Seven persons were
currently enployed by the Unit for the Rights of the Child and four others
were being trained abroad. In addition, 150 persons had received rudi mentary
training on the islands and another 50 were receiving nore extensive training
in the capital, Malé. In addition to the Unit for the Rights of the Child,
two NGOs provided advisory services. The authorities were striving to
strengthen the traditional nonitoring structures set up for the extended

fam |y and the conmunity.

41. Ms. YOOSUF (Mal dives) said that there were no honmes for battered w ves
in Mal di ves. Cenerally speaking, wonen did not report that type of situation
and if they did, they tended to withdraw their conplaint subsequently. The
M nistry of Wonen's Affairs and Social Wlfare did its best to apprise wonen
of their rights and encourage themto file cases of famly violence in the
courts.

42. Ms. SHI HAM ( Mal di ves) expl ai ned that the same man and worman could marry
each other three tinmes running, after which they had to marry other partners.
Then they were free to marry again three tinmes. The nunmber of marriage cycles
of that kind was limted to three, however, which neant nine marriages for the
same couple. In cases of violence within the famly, a restraining order
could be issued against a husband in order to protect the nother and child.
Educati on and training centres had been opened for boys since 1979 in order to
forestall delinquency, because boys were beginning to take to the streets.
Not hi ng had been planned for girls, who did not rebel in the same way and
married earlier. However, in Malé, for instance, 70,000 inhabitants were
crowded into 2.5 square kilonetres. The fact that children swarnmed in the
streets did not nean that they slept there.

43. Mul tiple marriages did generate enotional problens and behavi oura

di sorders in children. Handbooks had been prepared both for children and
their parents in cases of divorce. Wile the high divorce rate was
regrettable, children did not always appreciate their situation, because it
was so common in Maldives. There was no “formalized” system of adoption in

t he archi pel ago. That practice had not been wel comed by public opinion, which
feared that children would suffer nmore than if they were placed in a famly.
Her Covernnent had not yet considered authorizing inter-country adoption of
children. It did, however, plan to open an orphanage.

44, Ms. KARP asked what divorce signified in Ml dives and what the power
rel ati ons were between the two partners. Were wonen prosecuted in the courts
for adultery? Were there any hones for young victins of violence?



CRC/ C/ SR. 467
page 9

45, Ms. PALME noted the disintegration of the extended famly in Maldives.
She asked whet her the CGovernnent should not give thought to an effective
system for nmonitoring children placed in famlies, rather than setting up an
or phanage. She asked for details on the size of the planned orphanage.

46. M_. RABAH asked whet her there was any plan to | egalize “kafalah”, the
tutelary systemunder Islamc |law, as a substitute for adoption, which was
prohi bited by the Koran

47. The CHAI RPERSON, speaking in her personal capacity, asked whether, in
the case of sexual abuse, the child was entitled to file a conplaint before a
court or whether only parents enjoyed that right. It would be interesting to
know the fam |y hierarchical structure, given the frequency of divorce, and
the status of the nother-in-law. Ws there any youth gui dance systemt hat

hel ped peopl e becone better acquai nted before marrying, and so avoid the

i nfernal cycle of marriage and di vorce?

48. M. KOOSOV asked whet her pol ygany was accepted in Ml divian society, as
in other Islam c countries.

49. Ms. SHI HAM (Mal di ves) said that nen were nore likely to seek divorce

t han women. However, studies conducted for the Conference on the

Fam |y (1995) showed that nmen often sought divorce under pressure fromtheir
wi ves. Divorced wonen were, by and |arge, supported by their famlies and
were not socially stigmatized. The question of adultery was governed by the
Shariah. Advisory services were open to all, but provided no foll owup unless
those invol ved voluntarily returned for consultation

50. Ms. YOOSUEF ( Mal di ves) acknow edged that the placenment of children in
institutions was not an ideal solution. According to the ancestral culture of
Mal di ves, placenent of a child in a famly or his comunity was al ways
preferable. Indeed, nmenbers of Ml divian society tended to help and take care
of one another, with or without famly ties. The elderly therefore renained
in their famlies, even though an old people's hone did exist.

51. In response to M. Kol osov, she said that pol ygany was accepted
al t hough not encouraged. The practice was not intended to di scourage divorce,
as in other Islamc countries. Wnen perceived it as a negative experience.

52. In response to M. Rabah, she said that it was not unusual for people to
foster a child. “Kafalah” was envisaged in the context of Maldives in paralle
wi th the question of adoption.

53. On the subject of sexual abuse, she said that children often preferred
to turn to teachers rather than to their parents. However, teacher training
in the subject was limted.

54. In general, couples wishing to marry or divorce did not seek advice from
anyone. The Government had intended to set up a fam |y gui dance body, but the
pl an had had to be shelved owing to | ack of funds and qualified personnel



CRC/ C/ SR. 467
page 10

Basic health and welfare (questions 32 to 36 of the List of issues)

Education, leisure and cultural activities (questions 37 to 40 of the List of
i ssues)

55. M. FULCI asked about the neasures taken by the Ml divian Governnment to
conbat malnutrition and growth retardation. Ws there a nati onwi de plan of
action to reduce the incidence of malnutrition? What was the Government doing
to protect children fromsexual tourismand the risks of exposure to drug
abuse and HI V/ AIDS infection associated with that phenomenon? Were children
alerted to the risk involved? Was the evolution of this scourge nonitored and
what could the international community do to help elimnate it?

56. Ms. PALME endorsed the questions raised by M. Fulci on malnutrition and
the inmpact of tourismon the problens of sexual exploitation of children and
the spread of HHV/ AIDS. She wi shed to know whet her the school results of
children, particularly girls, placed as servants in famlies living far away
were as good as those who rermained in their own fanmilies. Wre the problens
of child devel opnent linked to early marri ages, the frequency of divorce or
the nutritional situation? Had the Ml dives sought international cooperation
inits quest for solutions to those problens?

57. Ms. KARP wi shed to know how many children were currently housed in
institutions. It appeared fromthe report (CRC/ C/ 8/Add.33) that the policy on
di sabl ed children was conmunity-based, which was | audable. But were schools
equi pped to deal with disabled children? How were children with nmenta
problems treated in the community? Wre there any studies or statistics on
the subject? Was anything being done to prevent disabilities, particularly
through informati on and educati on of parents? Were adol escents with specia
probl ems, such as drug abuse, |ooked after? Since there was no university in
Mal di ves, how were specialists, such as psychol ogi sts, social workers or
probation officers, recruited? Did young people wi shing to continue their
studi es beyond the twelfth year receive any financial assistance to study
abroad? Lastly, had any cases of female sexual mutilation been reported in
the country?

58. Ms. OUEDRAOGO wi shed to have nore information on the practice of
abortion, the existence or otherwise of fam |y planning services,
breastfeeding, and the effects of early weaning. Did children and parents
play any role in establishing educational standards, and were children heard
before disciplinary action was taken agai nst then? Wre classes overcrowded
because of the small nunber of schools? Wre human rights, nore particularly
the rights of the child, taught?

59. Ms. SARDENBERG wi shed to know whether there was a breastfeeding
pronmotion policy, and whether any sign |anguage had been devi sed for deaf
mut es.

60. Ms. SHI HAM (Mal dives) said that malnutrition in the country was not
caused by food shortage, but rather by an unbal anced diet. In that
connection, there had been numerous cases of adol escents fainting or feeling
unwel | at school after skipping breakfast. The Governnment had devel oped a
nati onwi de plan of action on malnutrition, as well as an information canpai gn



CRC/ C/ SR. 467
page 11

on proper diet. It was preparing a marketing code for breast-mlk
substitutes. A study on vitamn A deficiency was in progress. Gowh
retardati on was a major problemand efforts were being nade countryw de to
identify affected children and offer them a nore bal anced diet for a period of
time in order to put them back on the right track. The wi despread drop in
consunption of fresh vegetables was due | ess to progressive water salination
whi ch reduced arable | and, than to the econom c devel opnent of Ml di ves, which
had engendered in the popul ati on an excessive taste for inported products,
especially tinned goods. UN CEF was involved in an information canpai gn on
the virtues of eating fresh vegetabl es.

61. On the subject of sexual exploitation of children by foreigners, she
expl ai ned that tourists to Maldives had virtually no contact with the

popul ation. They arrived at an international airport on an uni nhabited

i sl and, whence they were inmediately transferred to the various beach resorts,
where they lived quite self-sufficiently for two or three weeks. The atolls

t hat housed those resorts were not inhabited by the indi genous popul ati on and
nmost enpl oyees there were imm grant workers. No children worked on those

i slands. When tourists left their hotel conplex to visit Mal é or other

i sl ands, they were al ways acconpani ed by a guide, who ensured that they
respected a code of conduct. All travel had to be approved by the Mnistry of
Tourism Mst of the population, therefore, rarely saw foreigners, and there
were probably some renote atolls still on which no tourist had ever set foot.

62. The drug consunption problemwas extrenely acute. Maldives was a
transit point for large nunmbers of travellers to other countries. An
anti-drugs agency and a treatnent centre had been set up to halt the
proliferation of drugs. The centre currently attended sone 15 patients, sone
of whom had voluntarily sought treatment. When treatment was voluntary, the
patient's identity was not communicated to the authorities. A court could
order a delinquent to register for a detoxification cure by putting himon
probation for a period not exceeding three years. Drug trafficking was an

of fence governed by separate |egislation

63. An inter-mnisterial council was responsible for determ ning the
policies and progranmes to be prepared in the fight against AIDS and to
identify infected individuals. Only eight H V-infected persons had been

di scovered in the country so far, none of whomwere children. However, the
Government was not relaxing its vigilance. A massive information canpai gn was
bei ng conducted, using posters and radio and tel evision broadcasts. | mr grant
wor kers and seanen and students returning from abroad had to undergo a

compul sory screening test. The sane was true of pregnant wonen and al

pati ents about to undergo surgery. The very high incidence of thalassaema, a
bl ood di sease that required child sufferers to have a nonthly transfusion
meant that the health authorities needed to be extrenely careful in selecting
bl ood donors.

64. All the authorities, the Unit for the Right of the Child, the anti-drug
agency, and the social security service had been collaborating for three years
under a prevention programe alerting parents and students to the dangers of
drug abuse. Counsellors, mainly volunteers, went from school to school

di stributing brochures and leaflets inform ng parents of the measures they
coul d take and the assistance they could receive for treatnent.



CRC/ C/ SR. 467
page 12

65. Many children fromother islands worked in Mal é as domestics. They were
supposed to participate in the |life of the household just as their enpl oyers
children did. No special study had been carried out to determ ne whether
their school results were affected. It should be observed that many persons
enpl oyed in the central admi nistration cane fromrenote islands.

66. There was an institution for disabled children which currently cared for
68 boys. A study was in progress on sone islands, but the exact nunber of

di sabl ed children was not known because they were traditionally cared for by
their famlies. Governnent action was restricted to the provision of financia
assi stance for procuring the necessary materials and equi pnent, and nedi ca
assi stance to nentally handi capped children. One school in Mal é had a specia
class for deaf-and-dunb children. However, no sign | anguage had been devi sed.
It was not known whether there was a connection between nmental disability and
early marriage. However, narriage between blood relations on sone islands
woul d seemto be a determ ning factor

67. Students | eavi ng secondary school were obliged to go abroad for

uni versity education. They received schol arships fromthe Governnent, which
benefited frombilateral aid and World Bank assistance to that end. The
reason there was no university in Ml dives was that the |ikely nunber of

enrol ments each year was nuch too small to make it feasible. Pupils who did
not complete their secondary studies could enrol in vocational training in the
fields of primary education, managenent, or health and hotel services, or they
could follow technical education. Doctors were trained in neighbouring
countries like Australia.

68. No case of female sexual nutilation had been reported in Ml dives.
Abortion was illegal. Famly planning services were being devel oped for sone
years now, because of the high birth rate. Breastfeeding was encouraged, and
easily so, since it was practised by 90 per cent of the popul ation

69. At school, children took part in the deliberations of the school boards
and hel ped, for instance, in the preparation of leisure facilities and in the
sel ection of sonme of the subjects taught. The curriculumwas nodelled on the
British system The Government was sparing no effort to raise the quality of
teachers and recruited for that purpose a nunber of foreign teachers who
taught in Ml dives; however, it had found it difficult to attract the best,
since it was not in a position to offer them conpetitive conditions of

enpl oynent. Most schools had a disciplinary board, which exam ned any serious
i nfringement. Classes had an average of 30 pupils. Wth regard to human
rights education, she referred the Cormittee to paragraph 38 of the witten
replies, which stated that a national curriculum had been devel oped and

i mpl enented in 1984 and that efforts were nmade to review curricula, giving
nore enphasis to the rights of children

The neeting rose at 1.02 p.m




